
 
 
 
  

  301 GLENWOOD AVENUE, SUITE 220 
RALEIGH, NC 27603 

Phone: (919) 367-8790 
E-Mail: mitch@cegroupinc.com 

 
PROVIDING CIVIL / SITE & INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING SERVICES SINCE 1998 

 
 
November 8, 2019 
 
Mrs. Caroline Siverson 
Chair 
Chatham County Planning Board   
12 East Street 
Pittsboro, NC  27312  
 
RE:  The Legacy at Jordan Lake Phase 3 
         
 
Dear Mrs. Siverson and Members of the Board: 
 
On December 3, 2019, Freehold Communities and the CE Group, Inc. will present the 
Preliminary Plat for the Legacy at Jordan Lake – Phase 3 before the Chatham County 
Planning Board.  The Preliminary Plat consists of the development of sixty-nine (69) lots. 
 
Due to the comments that we received from the Planning Board in the past and based 
on prior concerns of the board, the design of this phase of the Legacy Development was 
carefully thought out with respect to steep slopes and stream buffers.  The layout for 
Phase 3 was adjusted so that the steep slopes at the end of North Crest Drive were not 
impacted. 
 
The two main concerns with past phases of this project have been development on 
steep slopes and stormwater attenuation due to the close proximity of the development 
to Jordan Lake. 
 
Background – The Legacy at Jordan Lake was originally approved by the Board of 
County Commissioners on March 15, 2004 as a Planned Unit Development.  In 2005, 
the Owners of the property at the time voluntarily provided 100’ buffers on all streams 
requiring buffers within the Protected Area of the Jordan Lake watershed.  At the time, 
the Chatham County and State of North Carolina requirement was 50’ on either side of 
the top of bank of a stream within the Protected Area and 100’ for a stream within the 
Critical Area.  Sometime, well before the 2008 stormwater regulations were enacted, the 
Owners of the development voluntarily agreed to provide stormwater management 
facilities consistent with the regulation at the time for non-residential projects.  The 
Chatham County nor the State of North Carolina requirement for low density residential 
projects existed at the time.  The non-residential requirement was to draw down the ½” 
storm in a period of 2-5 days. 
 
 
 
 
 



  November 8, 2019 

Steep Slopes – The current Chatham County Erosion and Sedimentation Control 
Ordinance states the following: 
 

§ 164.06 SLOPE STANDARDS. 
 

(A) The county’s GIS data shall be used to determine and indicate where 
steep, moderate and gradual slopes exist on a slopes map. Where the 
accuracy of these data is in question by the applicant, an on-site topographic 
survey may be provided to the county by a state registered land surveyor or a 
professional engineer licensed by the state to demonstrate compliance with this 
section. The county GIS map or on-site topographic survey must be submitted 
with the initial erosion and sedimentation control plan or prior to obtaining a 
residential lot disturbance permit pursuant to § 164.13.  

 
(B) All land-disturbing activity for which an erosion and sedimentation control 
plan has not been approved prior to December 2, 2008 that requires a plan or a 
residential lot disturbance permit must meet the following slope standards.  

 
(1) Steep slopes. 

 
(a) No land-disturbing activity in excess of 5,000 square feet shall 

occur on any steep slope, except to the extent it is necessary 
and otherwise permitted by state law to be used for septic 
system needs, or for roadway crossings or  

(b) utilities, where no practicable alternative exists; provided, 
however, that this limitation shall not apply to subdivisionlots 
which have sketch, preliminary or final approval prior to 
December 2, 2008.  

 
(b) All land-disturbing activity that will be permitted within areas of 
steep slopes as defined by this chapter and identified on the 
county GIS map must include the following standards on the 
erosion and sedimentation control plan and all sitework must 
conform to these standards.  

 
Per the above section of the Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance and the attached 
email from the Watershed Protection Director, Phase 3 is not required to adhere to this 
portion of the Ordinance.   
 
However, included in this packet is an exhibit that shows the areas of steep slopes in 
relation to this phase.  As you can see, from these exhibits, the area of steep slopes that 
will be affected by this development comprise 0.0% of the total area to be cleared and 
graded during the development of Phase 3.  The steep slope information shown on this 
exhibit was sent to the CE Group by the Chatham County GIS Manager.   
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Stormwater – The voluntary stormwater controls on this project have been designed to 
capture concentrated flows from all roadways and lots draining to the roads. There are lots 
within this phase that are situated below the road grade and cannot drain to the roadway 
system. In those instances, runoff from driveway and roof surfaces are discharged in a sheet 
flow condition into grassed areas within back yards. This technique is referred to as 
disconnected runoff. Ultimately this sheet flow runoff (from individual lots) is conveyed across 
open space and through buffers into existing streams as a non-concentrated flow. The 
majority of the lots that are below the road are designed as basement lots to minimize the 
clearing and grading in the rear of the homesite.  The purpose of the undisturbed buffer is to 
treat areas of non-concentrated flow. 
 
The stormwater ponds have been sized to overtreat the watershed, taking into account the 
impervious coverage of the entire phase, regardless of whether the runoff actually is directed 
to the water quality measure. 
 
This approach of over treating and use of disconnected runoff is consistent with all 
subdivision projects in Chatham County including those subject to the current stormwater 
regulations. 
 
We hope that you find the above information useful in making your determination to 
approve this Preliminary Plat. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Email from Rachael Thorne (Watershed Protection Director) – 10/11/2018 
2. Steep Slopes Exhibit – Phase 3 
3. Drainage Area Exhibit – Phase 3 
4. PUD Approval (Original – 03/16/2004) 

 

CE Group, Inc. 

 
Mitch Craig, PE  
Principal/Project Manager 
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Mitch Craig

From: Rachael Thorn <rachael.thorn@chathamnc.org>
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2018 10:53 AM
To: Jason Sullivan; Mitch Craig
Cc: Andrew Smith; Mike McCollum; Mark Ashness; Kimberly Tyson; Lynn Richardson; Patrick 

Bradshaw
Subject: RE: The Legacy:  Submittal Discussion

To recap the portion of our discussion regarding stormwater: 
 

 This project is exempt from Chatham County Stormwater Ordinance 
 The approval of this project also occurred prior to Post-Construction Stormwater requirements from the state 

for Phase II “Tipped” communities so no state component is involved 
 The only requirements for stormwater are those established within the CUP 
 This project is also exempt from the Steep Slopes provision of the Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

Ordinance but not from other erosion control requirements 
 
 
Thanks, 
Rachael Thorn 
Watershed Protection Director 
Chatham County 
Office: (919) 545-8343 
In keeping with the NC Public Records Law, e-mails, including attachments, may be released to others upon request for 
inspection and copying. 
 
 
 

From: Jason Sullivan  
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 4:15 PM 
To: Mitch Craig <mitch@CEGROUPINC.COM> 
Cc: Andrew Smith <ats@freeholdcommunities.com>; Mike McCollum <mkm@freeholdcommunities.com>; Mark 
Ashness <mark@CEGROUPINC.COM>; Kimberly Tyson <kimberly.tyson@chathamnc.org>; Rachael Thorn 
<rachael.thorn@chathamnc.org>; Lynn Richardson <lynn.richardson@chathamnc.org>; Patrick Bradshaw 
<bradshaw@bradshawrobinson.com> 
Subject: RE: The Legacy: Submittal Discussion 
 
Mitch, 
The attached email has a link to the slopes data for your use. Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
Jason Sullivan 
Planning Director 
Chatham County 
P.O. Box 54 
80-A East St. 
Pittsboro, NC 27312 
Office: 919/542-8233 
Fax: 919/542-2698 
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www.chathamnc.org/planning   
 
Please let us know how we are doing by completing a short survey – click here 
 
In keeping with the NC Records Law, emails, including attachments, may be released to others upon request for 
inspection and copying. 
 

From: Mitch Craig [mailto:mitch@CEGROUPINC.COM]  
Sent: Wednesday, October 3, 2018 1:41 PM 
To: Jason Sullivan <jason.sullivan@chathamnc.org> 
Cc: Andrew Smith <ats@freeholdcommunities.com>; Mike McCollum <mkm@freeholdcommunities.com>; Mark 
Ashness <mark@CEGROUPINC.COM> 
Subject: The Legacy: Submittal Discussion 
 
Jason, 
I hope that you are doing well.  I appreciate your input last night at the Planning Board meeting regarding Phase 
4A2B.  My client, Andy Smith, will be in town next Tuesday October 9th and we would like to set up a meeting with you 
to ask some questions regarding the remainder of development of the subdivision.  Would you have time from 3:00 to 
4:00 pm to meet with us? 
 
Thanks, 
Mitch 
 
 
MITCH CRAIG, PE 
PRINCIPAL | PROJECT MANAGER 
 

    

 
 
301 Glenwood Avenue, Suite 220 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
Phone: (919) 367-8790 ext.108 
Cell: (919) 218-0990 
www.cegroupinc.com 

 

US Green Building Council Member 
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CHATHAM
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STEEP SLOPE AREAS PER
CHATHAM COUNTY GIS

THIS AREA WAS PREVIOUSLY
DISTURBED BY THE
INSTALLATION OF THE
EXISTING BRIDGE.

PHASE 3
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE
(30.22 ACRES)

STEEP SLOPES IN PHASE 3
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